GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED
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Notice is hereby given that the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
on Thursday, August 30, 2018, at 11:00 AM at the registered office of the Company at 701/704, 7th
Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing BKC (Bandra Kurla Complex), Bandra, Mumbai-400051 to fransact
the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements viz. Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2018 together with the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date, and
Board's report and Auditors report thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Ms. Meena Raghunathan (DIN 07145001}, who retires by
rotation and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a director in place of Dr. Dhananjay Deshpande (DIN 07663196), who retires by
rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. APPOINTMENT OF DR. M RAMACHANDRAN AS INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule 1V and all
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Qudlification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the tfime being in force), Dr. M. Ramachandran (DIN: 01573258) who
has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in
section 149(6) of the Act and who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing from a member under section 160 of the Act
proposing his candidature for the office of Director be and is hereby appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company to hold office up to the conclusion of Annual General
Meeting to be held in the year 2021."

5. APPOINTMENT OF MR. SRINIVAS BOMMIDALA AS DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (DIN: 00061464), who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from April 1, 2018, in terms of
Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company
and whose term of office expires at the Annual General Meeting and as recommended by
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors, be and is hereby appointed as
a Director of the Company whose period of office shall not be liable to refire by rotation.”

6. APPROVAL OF REMUNERATION OF THE COST AUDITOR

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including

y statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the fime being in force), M/s,
asimha Murthy & Co., Cost Accountants having firm registration no.000042, appointed by
Bbard of Directors of the Company as Cost Auditors, to conduct the audit of the cost
@‘rs of the Company, for the financial year 2018-19, be paid a remuneration of Rs.50,000/-




RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized
to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect
to this resolution.”

Date: July 18, 2018
Place: New Delhi

NOTES

1.

By Order of the Board
For GMR Warora Energy Limited

@F}N
e N
Sanjay Kumar Babu

Company Secretary

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which
sets out details relating to Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY
/ PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY / PROXIES
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies
etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

The Register of Directors* shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Companies
Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are
open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all
working days, except Saturdays, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.



ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 4

Pursuant to Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, every listed public company shall have
at least one-third of the fotal number of directors as independent directors and every other public
company having paid up share capital of ten crore rupees or more; or turnover of one hundred
crore rupees or more; or outstanding loans, debentures and deposits, exceeding fifty crore
rupees, shall have at least two directors as independent directors. In case a Company is required
to appoint a higher number of independent directors due to composition of its audit committee,
such higher number of IDs shall be applicable to it.

Further as per Section 149(10), (11) & (13) of the Act, an independent director shall hold office for
a term up to 5 (five} consecutive years and is eligible for reappointment for another term of up fo
5 (five) consecutive years on passing of special resolution by the Company and disclosure in the
Boards' Report. The Independent Director is not liable to retire by rotation.

Dr. M. Ramachandran, a retired officer of Indian Administration Service has held various prestigious
positions in his early years of service like that of Collector and District Magistrate of Bijnor and Rae
Bareli in Uttar Pradesh, Divisional Commissioner of Meerut, Garhwal & Bareilly Divisions where he
took various new initiatives and received the appreciation of public. As the First National Officer on
deputation to United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), India, he has handled assignment
as Head of the Industry Trade Sector Programme supervising Project formulation and
implementation covering Ministries of Industry, Commerce, Textiles, Steel, Electronics, etc. He
developed India's st Leather Sector and Jute sector Programmes totaling $38 milion and
obtained approval by presenting these two programs before the UNDP's Governing Council at

New York.

Apart from the International assignment and the postings in the States of U.P. and Uttaranchal he
has also served as Private Secretary to Union Minister of State in the Ministries of Industries, Finance,
Commerce, Internal Security, and Power. He has also worked for the Government of India as Joint
Secretary, Ministry of Shipping. He has served as Principal Secretary to Chief Minister of
Uttaranchal, Additional Chief Secretary in-charge of Infrastructure, supervising and coordinating
16 departments and structured the Infrastructure Vision for the State and his initiatives have
enabled the State to be on the path of steady development and have been responsible for rapid
industrialization of the State. He has held the position of Chairman of State Industrial Development
Corporation and of Infrastructure Development Corporations as Joint Ventures of IDFC and IL&FS.
He was Secretary, Ministry of Urban Development in Government of India. He was Chairman of
the Metro Rail Corporation of Delhi, Bangalore, Kolkata and Chennai. Dr. M Ramachandran holds
a post graduate degree in Economics and is a Master of Philosophy in the subject of Economic
Planning from University of Glasgow. He has a PhD. in Project Planning.

Dr. M. Ramachandran fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed thereunder, for his appointment as independent director of the Company and he is
independent of the management. The Company has also received a declaration from him that
he meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and he is eligible
for appointment as independent director.

Keeping in_ view his vast expertise aond knowledge, it is proposed to appoint Dr. M.
Ramachandran, as independent director of the Company to hold office up to the conclusion of
Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2021. Copy of the draft lefter for
appointment of Dr. M. Ramachandran as an independent director setting out the terms and
conditions is available for inspection by members at the Registered / Corporate Office of the

Company.

None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in
any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval of the shareholders.

ltem No. 5§

Mr. Srinivas Bommidala, one of the first directors of the Group and has been a member of
Board since 1996, Mr. Srinivas Bommidala entered his family tobacco export business in 1982 and



led the diversification info new businesses such as Aerated water bottling plants, etc. He was also
in charge of international marketing and management of the organization.

Subsequently, he led the team as the Managing Director of GMR Power Corporation Limited for
setting up the first Independent Power Project. Situated at Chennai in southern part of India this
200 MW project with slow speed diesel technology was the world's largest diesel engine power
plant under one roof. He was also instrumental in implementing the 388 MW combined cycle gas
turbine power project in Andhra Pradesh. When the Government of India decided to modernize
and restructure New Delhi Airport under a Public Private Partnership in 2006, he became the first
Managing Director of this venture and successfully managed the transition process from a public
owned entity to a public private partnership enterprise. In 2007 he took over as the Chairman of
Transportation & Highways Sector of the Group consisting of Transportation, Special Economic
Zone at Kakinada - Andhra Pradesh and Krishnagiri in Tamilnadu, Construction, Commercial
Property Development at Delhi & Hyderabad Airports/ Aerotropolis and other Group Properties
Businesses. Also he was the Chairman of GMR Sports which owns Delhi Dare Devils as IPL
Franchisee.

In 2011, Mr. Srinivas Bommidala took over as the Chairman — Airports, which consists of Indira
Gandhi International Airport {Delhi), Rajiv Gandhi International Airport (Hyderabad), Mactan
Cebu International Airport, Republic of Philippines. GMR today is among the top five airport
developers in the world. He will continue to spearhead Commercial Property Development /
Aerotropolis at New Delhi and Hyderabad airports.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors has recommended the
appointment of Mr. Srinivas Bommidala as Director of the Company.

Save and except Mr. Srinivas Bommidala and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding
interest, if any, in the Company, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval of the shareholders,

Item No. 5

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, had approved the appointment
and remuneration of M/s. Narasimha Murthy & Co., Cost Accountants having firm registration
no.000042 to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2019 at remuneration as detailed in the resolution.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the
shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is being sought for
ratification of the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors for the financial year ended March 31,

2019.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice, for approval
by the members.

None of the other Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is in
any way, concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in these resolutions.

All documents referred to in the Explanatory Statement are open for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working
days, except Saturdays, during business hours up to the date of the Meeting. .

By Order of the Board
For GMR Warora Energy Limited

W

Fd
anjay Kumar Babu
ompany Secretary
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Date: July 18, 2018
Place: New Delhi




GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED

Regd Off: 701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai — 400 051

(CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140; T: 022- 42028000; website: www.gmrgroup.in)

Attendance Slip

DP ID

FOLIO NO. / No. of shares
CLIENT ID

Name(s) and address of the member in full:

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Tenth Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held Thursday, August 30, 2018, at 11:00 AM at the registered office of the Company at 701, 7th
Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai-400051.

Member

Proxy

Signature of Member / Proxy




GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED
Regd Off: 701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai — 400 051
(CIN: U40100MH2005PLC 155140; T: 022- 42028000; website: www.gmrgroup.in)

Proxy form
Form No. MGT-11
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the E-mail Id:
member(s): Folio No/Client Id*:
Registered address: DP ID*:
[/We, being the member (s) of B shares of GMR Warora Energy Limited, hereby
appoint:
17 of having e-mail id or falling him
2 of having e-mail id or falling him
3 of having e-mail id or

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Seventh
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, August 30, 2018, at 11:00 AM at
the registered office of the Company at 701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A-Wing Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra, Mumbai-400051and / or at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

S. No. | Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2018, the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Ms. Meena Raghunathan (DIN 07145001), who retires by
rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment

3. To appoint a director in place of Dr. Dhananjay Deshpande (DIN 07663196), who retires by
rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment

Special Business

4, Appointment of Dr. M Ramachandran as independent director of the company
5, Appointment of Mr. Srinivas Bommidala as Director of the Company
6. To approve remuneration of the cost auditor for the FY 2018-19.

Signed this day of 2018

Signature of Member

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.




VENUE MAP OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED
SCHEDULED TO BE HELD ON AUGUST 30, 2018

PG LI

| Rompll Group | i . E
of Companies AKIAK A
SINDM] COLONY g 1] KO AF BVIND NAGAR
« Sobha Develapers Lid, RIMARL ;
1A AZAD NAGAR % o
Ryt CHhatrspan SHivi| i
# A A Internationol Airport CHIRAG'NAGAR
| i  Phosnix Mark
AT CIES KHANTIHAGAR ot (7]
ASHOE RAGANL 'piann 1 T
: COLORY SAIHA JAR NRVPADA
saNTAGRLZ D = AMARMAGAR & Aakeotl
WEST 3 : INDIAN AITRLINES CHRISTIAN GAON
H :“g‘gmg‘"mm COEONY VIDYANIAR, | 1 y
WAR OAKRDS & o VAKOLA NEevel0nes : > SOCIETY -
GHASTRINAGAR
Hacs b = 13 = Grand Hyotl Munibai P
~Ut - KALINA fAinrrr L =
-'E Ty Mimeal VIDYA
B | el | VIHAR EAST
) 3 | * KHomanl KEELRANTH
KRR WESS WHAH EAST vIRAR
! | University of Mumbai ; " Bl e ) &
g RPECCUONY « Platina’ " £ fevo
BALUMILE J IS ANUAY. NAGAR -
* Mantti Constructions f ) Il MUNGSL NADAR
oy VEHRMMENT \ = b G e » o o
COLaONY L & B ONEHRU NAGAR 5 SHRARUIV] o SHERDANAG
¥ i : ? ¥ S KUBLA FRST BASER f'i NA
N BANDRA WEST I- = Ekta Wotld Shreo Naman Group. KURLA 2 '3 e
5T PETER'S H :
"_: Q!l"”'” . K.hl.--nME\l J A MIGAN NAGAR o3 NI HADED
X @ SHIV SRUSH Tl 2 WAD|
i ERLOEP R T3 MR ATUSTAFRCHE, ©  aasTIK RARK
i MADAM WAD ' ey i it BAT
i Y Y e~ o LN By
! ot a1 9% - = Diyacri 204 = “'l" ¥ A
."'55"'."‘_] e CIBLRCKIINE B imdil = ‘;w\c““ SINDHI SOQIETY T
}' v i A
Iy ’ IBLOCK BRED e : #
I JOIAIY A UNION PARK
I ‘._E'r" ey -.*.I MUNICIPAL ASHOK HAGAR +
[ e = grgie KpAMEAR CHEMBURT
— IEEAWAUA il o YASAH 3 -y
— 1L e ¢ 1
LteMzss MedeaEIbScige  Terrs SGimLJ 5 PRATIHSHA 1 oARITA COLONY )




= A.




GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED
Registered Office: No.701/704, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A Wing,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 051
(CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140; T: 022-42028000; website: www.gmrgroup.in)

BOARD'S REPORT
To the Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the Thirteenth Annual Report of the
Company together with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended March 31,
2018.

FINANCIAL / OPERATIONAL SUMMARY
The financial status of the Company as on March 31, 2018 is as under:

Amount in Rs. million)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Income 178,86.83 17166.79
Expenditure 15,960.16 15,735.88
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 1,926.67 1,430.91
Tax expense (0.74) 1.37
Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 1,927.41 1429.54
Total Comprehensive income for 1,928.90 1426.77
the year

STATUS OF THE PROJECT

The Plant consists of 2 x 300 MW coal fired Units with all associated auxiliaries and Balance of
Plant Systems. Both the 300 MW units (Unit #1, #2) have been constructed, commissioned and
COD of both the units have already been declared and are operational. Both the FSA, ACQ
quantities has been successfully amended to 1.3 Million Tonnes (each) and with this
Company has a Coal Supply Agreement with SECL for a Total ACQ of 2.6 Million Tonnes per

annum.
Madjor Highlights of the FY 2017-18:

Plant has achieved Gross PLF of 71.3% with 82.1% Availability.

All three PPA's for full quantum of 550 MW commenced and operational under LTA.

PPA compliance for MSEDCL is 76.3%, DNH is 84.9%, and for TNSLDC is 78.9%.

112% Ash Utilization was achieved by tying with nearby Cement Industries for Fly Ash &

various Brick Manufacturers for Bottom Ash.

o Successfully completed the Weir dam construction work and made operationalized
w.e.f June'l7.

Reduction in rate of interest on loans from banks from 11.45% to 11.10%.

Improvement in credit rating from D to BB.

Plant achieved an audited score of 82.54% in British Safety Council assessment
equivalent to 3 Star rating.

o 100% compliances to all applicable Legal & Statutory requirement was Completed.
Continuous monitoring & updation is being done through Legatrix. Align dashboard
implemented and regular monitoring being done through it.

o Plant received the following awards & Certifications in various categories:

0O O O o
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Board's Report_ GMR Warora Energy Limited- 2017-18



Awards:

i. Company was awarded with the prestigious “National Energy Conservation Award
2017" by Bureau of Energy Efficiency, Govt. of India & Ministry of Power. The award
was presented by Shri Ram Nath Kovind, Hon'ble President of India in the National
Energy Conservation Day function held at Vigyan Bhawan, New Delhl.

ii. Awarded the prestigious "IMC Ramakrishna Bajaj National Quality Award 2017 "in
Service category.

ii. Received the Cll "National Award for Excellence in Water management” for Within the
Fence category & “Noteworthy Project in Water Management” for beyond the fence
category.

iv. Received the "7th Annual GREENTECH HR Award 2017" for Outstanding achievement in
Innovation In Employee Retention Strategies.

v. Received the “MEDA 11th Stafe Level Award for Excellence in Energy Conservation
and Management by Govt. of Maharashtra.”

vi. Received the NSCI "Shrestha Suraksha Puraskar Award 2017" for effective
implementation of Occupational Safety and Health management system by Hon'ble
Minister of Labour and Employment, Govt. of India.

Certifications

i. National Accreditation Board for Testing & Callibration (NABL) certification obtained for
Mechanical & Thermal Calibration facilities in the plant.
ii. ISO 55001 Asset Management System pre assessment audit completed in the month of

Feb 2018

ii. BVCI certified 13 lead auditors & 17 internal auditors for ISO 55001 Asset management
system.

iv. NABL Surveillance audit completed for Coal Lab in the month of July 2017.

v. IMS Recertification & EnMS Surveillance audit completed in the month of May 2017.

Way Forward:

o Plant is Perusing 6 projects under Six Sigma in Phase 2, which is expected to be
completed by October, 2018.
British Safety Council 5-star rating by September, 2018.
Asset Management system ISO 55001:2014 certification.
Completion of construction of Permanent township by Dec'18.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.
EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

There are no material changes and commitments affecting financial position of the company
between 31st March and the date of Board's Repor.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company's authorized capital stands at Rs.1100 crore divided into ninety crore equity
shares and twenty crore preference shares of Rs.10/- each. The current paid-up capital
consists of Rs.870 crore equity shares and Rs.75 crore preference shares.

e, ——————
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The Company continues to retain its status as direct subsidiary of GMR Energy Limited, and by
virtue of section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), it continues to be subsidiary of

GMR Infrastructure Limited.

SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies of ifs
own and hence the statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/ Associate Companies/ Joint Ventures, as required to be provided in Form—
AOC 1, is nhot applicable.

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

Since the Company does not have Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company, this
section is not applicable.

DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend any dividend for the year 2017-18

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year there was no transfer of fund to any reserves.

BOARD MEETING

The Board of Directors met five times during the financial year. The intervening gap
between two consecutive meetings was not more than the period prescribed under the
Act. The details are given in the Corporate Governance section of this Report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review the Company has neither invited nor accepted any fixed
deposits from the public.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS

The Company has received necessary declaration from independent directors of the
Company under Section 149(7) of the Act that they meet the criteria of independence
laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an exfract of annual return in Form MGT 9
as a part of this Annual Report is attached as Annexure-l.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In pursuance of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm
that:

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of

Section 134(3})(c) of the Act:

~a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended

31st March 2018, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along

with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
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b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note 1 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements have been selected and applied consistently and judgement and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as fo give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018 and of the
profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been
laid down and that the financiai controls are adequate and were operating
effectively.

f) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The Company has given loan to a fellow subsidiary/holding company, as per the details
provided the Notfes to Accounts forming part of the Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2018, for the purpose of providing financial assistance. The Company has
not provided any security or guarantee to any other company during the year under
review. Further, no investment was made by the Company in the securities of other
companies during the year.

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT
Statutory Auditors:

M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah {C&S), Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company
hold office until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2019.
Due to the changes made by the Companies (Amendment) Act 2017 in Section 139(1)
regarding removal of requirement of ratification of Auditors, no ratification is being sought
at the forthcoming AGM.

The audit report on the annuadl financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on March 31, 2018 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. The
notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and
do not call for any further comments.

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors u/s 143(12) during the FY 2017-18.

Secretarial Auditors:

M/s S. Behera & Co, Practising Company Secretaries, were appointed as Secretarial
Auditors to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2017-18. The
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 is annexed herewith
as Annexure-ll to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Cost Auditors:

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Narasimha Murthy & Co. Cost Accountants, fo
conduct Cost Audit for the financial year 2017-18.

The Cost audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2017 does not contain any
quadlification, reservation or adverse remark. The Cost Audit Report of the Company for
the financiatl year ended March 31, 2017 was filed in XBRL mode on October 18, 2017.

e ————
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO:

(A) Conservation of energy:
Following steps are taken on conservation of Energy which optimizes the Auxiliary

consumption of Plant:

Optimization of ESP Power consumption through Power Saver Mode.

Reduction in Diesel consumption in CHP by 20 %.

Reduction in Water & power Consumption at site by 20%.

Reduction in Auxiliary Power Consumption in Compressor House from Air/System
Optimization.

Reduction in heat rate from 2320 to 2300 Kcal/Kwh by December, 2017.

Reduction in power consumption of fire pumps by 50%.

Reduction in cost of LUB oil consumption in plant by 10%.

o O O

(B) Technology absorption:
1. Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption.

i, Installation of Water Balancing SCADA, a real time water consumption
monitoring towards conservation of water.

i. Installation of Coal Dust Suppression System to improve the working environment
near Coal mill area.

iii. In house development of knowledge management and ATR system portal for
better knowledge management and improvement in fraceability.

iv. Digitalization of Logbooks under project Abhijitham.

2 Installation of VFD in seal air fans, and LED lights installation.

2. Above energy conservation and reliability improvement measures has resulted in direct
savings of Rs.35 Crore and intangible benefits like reliability improvement and process
improvement.

(C) Environment Health and safety:

l. In continuous journey towards improvement in Health and safety, Zero Harm initiative
is taken.

II. Initioted Mass plantation of 12,500 plants in and around plant vicinity under the
theme of “Connecting People to Nature™.

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year), following information may be furnished: - Not
Applicable
(a) Details of technology imported- N.A
(b) Year of import. N.A
(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed. N.A
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons

therefore. N.A
4, Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

Foreign Exchange Earnings during the Financial Year 2017-2018 is Nil.
Foreign Exchange Outflow during the Financial Year 2017-2018 is Rs.18.46 Crore.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:

During the year under review, Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) has issued
order in favour of the Company allowing claim for additional components in respect of
customers, Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited (MSEDCL) & Dadra
Nagar Haveli (DNH) and Change in Law (CIL) / Coal Pass Through {CPT) in case of Tamil
Nadu Electricity Board (TNEB). Total revenue booked for CIL / CBT for FY 17-18 is Rs.343.57
Cr.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the Management.

The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly
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maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor
of the Company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance
with policy adopted by the Company. The Company confinues to ensure proper and
adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, the changes in the Directors were as under:

» Mr. S.C Kadlia, Independent Director, resigned w.e.f. October 28, 2017;

» Mr. GBS Raju resigned as Director and Managing Director w.e.f. March 31, 2018.

» Dr. M. Romachandran was appointed as an Additional Director, in the category of
Independent Director w.e.f. January 0%, 2018.

> Mr. S. Bommidala was appointed as Additional Director as well as Managing Director
w.e.f. April 01, 2018. The appointment of Mr. Bommidala was approved by the
shareholders in their meeting held on May 04, 2018.

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to the contributions made by Mr.
GBS Raju and Mr. $.C Kalia during their tenure as Directors of the Company.

Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande and Ms. Meena Raghunathan are retiring by rotation at the
ensuing AGM and being eligible have offered for reappointment.

During the year under review, the following officials continued holding the position(s)
KMP:

e Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande as Whole-time Director of the Company

e Mr. Ashish Vinay Deshpande as Chief Financial Officer {CFO) of the Company.

e Mr. Sanjay Kumar as Company Secretary of the Company

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial
year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length
basis and hence, did not aftract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Rules framed thereunder, the particulars required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in prescribed Form AOC- 2, are, thus,
not applicable to the Company. The details of transactions are provided in the financial
statement (Please refer to Note 36 to the financial statement).

VIGIL MECHANISM

To maintain high level of legal, ethical and moral standards and to provide a gateway for
employees to voice concern in a responsible and effective manner about serious
malpractice, impropriety, abuse or wrongdoing within the organization, the Company has
a Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism in place, applicable to the Company, ifs holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and other Group Companies. This mechanism has been
communicated to all concerned. Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism is administered
appropriately by the Group Ombudsperson who will provide a quarterly update to BCM (IB
& G). Group Head E& makes a periodical report to the Audit Committee of the
Company on implementation of the Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a detailed risk management framework duly approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board. The Company’s risk management framework is in line with the
current best practices and effectively addresses the emerging challenges in a dynamic
business environment. In today's challenging and competitive environment, strategies for
mitigating inherent risksin accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative.
As a matter of policy, risks are assessed and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the
same.

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS' LIABILITY INSURANCE

_— e ——————————
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GMR Group ensures and maintains the liability insurance for its Directors and Officers of all
its subsidiaries. The Group believes that it is appropriate to provide such cover to protect
the directors from any innocent error arisen if any, as the Directors carry significant liability
under criminal and civil law.

All the Directors of the Company are covered by Directors' & Officers Liability Policy taken
by GMR Infrastructure Limited, holding Company with the Insurance Company.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of the Board
and its Committees. The evaluation was based on structured questionnaire, covering
various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the
Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations and governance.

LISTING
The Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on the debt segment of BSE
Ltd. The annual listing fee for the year 2017- 2018 has been paid to the Exchange.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and $S-2, relating fo ‘Meetings of the Board
of Directors' and ‘General Meetings', respectively, have been duly followed by the

Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for
every individual working in its premises through various interventions and practices. The
Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

GMR Group recoghizes that sexual harassment violates fundamental rights of gender
equality, right 1o life, liberty and right to work with human dignity as guaranteed by the
Constitution of India. The Group had constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC)
and had implemented a detailed policy against sexual harassment at work place. During
the year ended 31 March, 2018, no complaint of sexual harassment was received.

Awareness programmes were conducted across the Company to sensitize employees fo
uphold the dignity of their colleagues at the workplace, particularly with respect to
prevention of sexual harassment.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

A Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the Company, which has been approved by the Board. The CSR Policy of
the Company is given as Annexure-lIL.

During the year, the Company has spent voluntary Rs.144.97 lakh on CSR activities, even
though the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding mandatory expenditure on
Corporate Social Responsibility are not attracted to the company for this financial year, as
the Company was into losses in the previous financial years. The Annual Report on CSR
activities is annexed herewith as Annexure-IV.

DISCLOSURE IN TERMS OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015

;—ﬂ
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Pursuant to Clause 53 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
the Company discloses information as under:
Details of Debenture Trustee:

Name of the Debenture M/s Axis Trustee Services Limited
Trustee
Address Axis House, 2nd Floor, Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills

Compound, Pandurang Budhakar Marg, Worli,
Mumbai-400025.

Telephone No-022-24255237

Contact Person- Ms. Swati Borkar

Manager

The audited financial statements i.e balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, profit and loss
account and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2018, auditors' report
and Directors report forms part of the Annual Report.

Details of the related party disclosures have been made in the notes to accounts of the
audited financial statements.

INFORMATION AS PER RULE 5(1) OF CHAPTER Xl OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees and the performance of the Company for the year 2017-18 is as below:
Mr. GBS Raju, Managing Director:28.96; Mr. Ashis Basu, WTD:22.42 Mr. S.N Barde,
WTD :34.33; Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande, WTD:8.99
The performance of the Company has been dlready mentioned in
financial/operational summary section of the Board's Report.

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief financial Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:
Mr. GBS Raju (Managing Director) 55.49
Mr. Ashis Basu (Whole-time Director): 29.14
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Babu (Company Secretary): 8.33

#Mr. S.N Barde, WTD, Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande, WTD and Mr. Ashish Vinay Deshpande,
CFO did not receive remuneration for the whole period of FY 2016-17, as they were
appointed midway during that year and accordingly their percentage increase is not
comparable and hence not disclosed.

c. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the
financial year: Approx. 4.43% The increments given on 1st July every year
depended on performance ratings and as per Group Corporate Policy.

d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as of March 31,
2018 is 247.

e. Average percentile increase adlready made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the
percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
Remuneration: Approx. 7.2%. The increments given on Ist July every year
depended on performance ratings and as per Group Corporate Policy.

f. It is affrmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the
Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is as under:
i. Employed for the financial year with an average salary of Rs.1.02 crore per annum and
above.

e e e ——————
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| Name Designati | Remu | Nature of | Quali | Date of Age Particular | Equity Relative of
on nerati | Employ- ficati | joining of s of last Share any director
on ment on Empl | employm | held by | or manager
receiv | Contract | and oyee | ent the of the
ed (Rs. | valor Exper employ Company, if
in cr) Permane | ience eeinthe | any.
nt (in Compa
years ny
)
Mr. GBS Managin | 2.55 Permane | B.Co [ 05.02.1993 | 44 N.A Nil N.A
Raju g nt m; 25
Director
Mr. S.N Whole- 2.94 Permane | B.E:39 | 02.07.2004 | 61 NTPC Nil N.A
Barde time nt
Director
Mr. Ashis Whole- 1.95 Permane | C.A; 17.12.2001 | 56 Balagarh | Nil N.A
Basu fime nt 31 Power
Director
Mr. Avinash | CEO- 1.78 Permane | B.Tech| 21.07.2016 | 61 GSFC Nil N.A
Ramakant | Internation nt . PGD
Shah al Coal (Mgmt
1:38
Mr. Mohan S| Head - HR | 1.11 Permane | B.Sc, 16.08.2010 | 55 JSW Nil N.A
nt MBA Energy
ii. Details of top ten employees in terms of remuneration
Name Designat | Rem | Nature Qualifi | Date of Ag | Particula | Equity Relative of
ion uner | of cation | joining e of | rs of last | Share any
ation | Employ- | and Em | employ | held by director or
recei | ment Experi plo | ment the manager
ved Contrac | ence yee employe | of the
(Rs.in | tual or (in einthe Company,
cr) Perman | years) Compan | if any.
ent y
Mr. GBS Managin | 2.55 Perman | B.Com | 05.02.1993 | 44 N.A Nil N.A
Raju g ent ;25
Director
Mr. Ashis | Whole- 1.95 Perman | C.A; 31| 17.12,2001 56 Balagarh | Nil N.A
Basu fime ent Power
Director
Mr. S.N Whole- 2.94 Perman | B.E:39 | 02.07.2004 | 61 NTPC Nil N.A
Barde fime ent
Director
Mr. CEO- 1.78 Perman | B.Tech, | 21.07.2016 | 61 GSFC Nil N.A
Avinash Internation| ent PGD
Ramakant | al Codl (Mgmt);
Shah 38
Mr. Mohan| Head - HR | 1.11 Perman | B.Sc, 16.08.2010 | 55 JSW Nil N.A
S ent MBA Energy

#
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Mr. Head - 0.86 Perman | B.E, 11.03.2016 | 58 NMDC Nil N.A
Chenna Codl ent MBA; 35
Kesava Assets
Reddy
Biddala
Mr. Whole- 0.76 Perman | B.E, 24.09.2012 | 55 Lanco Nil N.A
Dhananja | time ent MBA;32 Power
% Director Limited
Vasantrao
Deshpand
e
Mr. Principal | 0.53 Principal | M.A, 14.05.2012 67 CIDCO Nil N.A
Ravindra | Associate Asscosia | BSc,
Nath te MSc;44
Verma
Mr. Rajesh | Head- 0.58 Perman | M. 20.09.2010 | 54 Dr. HS Nil N.A
Tiwari Geology ent Tech:32 Gour
Universit
Y
Mr. Head - 0.52 Perman | M.A;25 | 17.07.2015 | 48 Relianc Nil N.A
Abhaykum| C&! and ent e
ar (N Energy
Janardan Ltd
Choudhari
iil. Employees who are employed for a part of the year and drawing remuneration of
Rs.8.5 Lakh or more per month.
Name Designati | Remun | Nature | Qualificati | Date Age of | Particula | EQuity | Relativ
on erafion | of on and of Employ | rsof last | Share | e of
receiv | Employ | Experienc | joining | ee employ | held any
ed (Rs. | -ment e (in ment by the | director
incrj Contra | years) emplo | or
ctual or yeein | manag
Perman the er of
ent Comp | the
any Compa
ny, if
any.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Transparency and accountability are the two basic tenets of Corporate Governance which are
infegral part of the business and we endeavour to ensure faimess for every stakeholder- our
customers, investors, vendors and the communities where we operate. We always seek to ensure
that our performance is driven by integrity, value and ethics. Responsible corporate conduct is
integral to the way we do our business. The Company as a part of GMR Group continues to drive
innovations in policies, practices and disclosures on corporate political activities and other key

governance areas.
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a) Composition: The Board of the Company comprises of the following Directors:
S. No. Name of the Director Position Category
e Mr. G. B. S. Raju* Managing Director Executive
2. Mr. S Bommidala$ Managing Director Executive
3y Mr. Ashis Basu Whole-time Director Executive
4, Mr. S.N. Barde Whole-time Director Executive
58 Mr. Dhananjay Deshpande Whole-time Director Executive

e e e e e ——
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6. Ms. Meena Raghunathan Director Non-Executive

7. Dr. M Ramachandran# Director Independent Director
8. Mr. S.K Goel Director Independent Director
9, Mr. S.C Kalio@ Director ] Independent Director

*Resigned as Director w.e.f March 31, 2018; @ resigned w.e.f October 28, 2017
#Appointed w.e.f January 09, 2018; $ Appointed as Managing Direcfor w.e.f April 01, 2018

b)

Meetings of the Board:

Five meetings of the Board were held on the following dates during the year

ended on March 31, 2018:

Aprit 26, 2017
July 24, 2017
October 18, 2017
January 19, 2018
March 30, 2018

R =00 9 =

The details of attendance at Board Meetings either in person or through video
conferencing during the financial year 2017-18 and at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company are detailed below:

Name of Attendance at the Board Attendance

Directors/DIN Meeting(s) at last AGM
Held Held during tenure | Attended

GBS Raju* S S 1 Yes

(DIN:00061686)

Ashis Basu 5 5 S No

(DIN: 01872233)

S. N Barde 5 S 2 Yes

(DIN: 03140784)

Dhananjay 5 S 5 No

Deshpande

(DIN:07663196)

Meena Raghunathan 5 5 4 Yes

{DIN:07145001)

Dr. M 5 2 2 N.A

Ramachandran#

(DIN:01573258)

S.K Goel@ 5 5 5 No

(DIN:00492659)

S.C Kalic@ 5 5 2 No

(DIN:00075644)

*Resigned as Director w.e.f March 31, 2018; @Resigned w.e.f October 28, 2017; #Appointed w.e.f January 09,

2018

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors:
The Independent Directors held a Meeting on January 19, 2018, without the attendance of
Non-Independent Directors and members of Management. All the Independent Directors
were present at the meeting. The following issues were discussed in detail:

) Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

l)Reviewed the performance of the Whole-time Director of the Company, taking into
account the views of other Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors;

Il Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably
perform their duties.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE CONSTITUTION

a) Composition of the Committee,
The current compasition of the Audit Committee is as follows:
Name Position Category
Dr. M Ramachandran# Member Independent

e e —— e e e W e
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Mr. 5.C Kalio@ Member Indepéndem

Mr. S.K Goel Member Independent

Mr. S.N. Barde Member Executive

b)

#Appointed w.e.f January 09, 2018; @resigned w.e.f Ocfober 28, 2017

The composition of the Audit Committee meets the requirements of Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Audit Committee. All recommendations made by the Audit Committee during
the year were accepted by the Board.

Meetings of the Audit Committee:

Four Meetings of the Audit Committee were held on the following dates during
the year ended on March 31, 2018:

1. April 26, 2017

2. July 24, 2017

3. October 18, 2017

4. January 19, 2018
The Committee reviewed the periodical financial statements and the

observations of the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors. Whenever the
committee reviewed the Internal Audit Report and the financial statements, on
invitation, the Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors attended the Committee
Meetings and submitted their observations fo the Committee.

The details of attendance at Audit Committee Meetings either in person or
through video conferencing during the financial year 2017-18:

Name of Directors/DIN Attendance at the Audit Committee
Meeting(s
Held Held during | Attended

tenure

Mr. S. N Barde (DIN: 03140784) 4 4 3

Mr. S.C Kalia{DIN:00075644)@ 4 2 2

Mr. S. K Goel(DIN:00492659) 4 4 4

Dr. M Ramachandran# 4 2 1

(DIN:01573258)

#Appointed w.e.f January 09, 2018; @resigned w.e.f Ocfober 28, 2017

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

a)

Composition of the Committee.
The current composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as

follows:

Name Category

Mr. S.C Kalia@ Independent
Mr. S K Goel Independent
Dr. M Ramachandran# Independent
Ms. Meena Raghunathan~ Non-Executive
Mr. S.N Barde* Executive

#Appointed w.e.f January 09, 2018; @resigned w.e.f October 28, 2017
*Ceased fo be member of NRC w.e.f July 24, 2017; ~ Appointed w.e.f. July 24, 2017

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meefts the
requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
During the year ended, meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
were held on July 24, 2017 and March 30, 2018.

Ihe details ot attendance at Nomination Remuneration Committee Meetings
either in person or through video conferencing during the financial year 2017-18

Name of Directors/DIN Attendance at the Nomination &
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Remuneration Committee Meeting(s)
Held Held Attended
during
tenure
S. N Barde (DIN: 03140784)* 2 2 ] o
S.C Kalia (DIN:00075644) @ 2 ] 1
S. K Goel (DIN:00492659) 2 2 2
Dr. M Ramachandran 2 1 1
(DIN:01573258) #
Ms. Meena Raghunathan$ 2 2 1

#Appointed w.e.f January 09, 2018; @resigned w.e.f October 28, 2017
*Ceased fo be member of NRC w.e.f July 24, 2017, $inducted in NRC w.ef July 24, 2017

The policy of the company on Directors appointment and remuneration including criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of directors and other
matters provided under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, adopted by the Board is

given as Annexure-V.

There were no other pecuniary relationships or tfransactions of the Independent Directors

vis-a-vis the Company.

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

a) Composition of the Committee.

The current composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as

follows:

Name

Category

Mr. S.N. Barde

Non-Executive director

Ms. Meena Raghunathan

Non-Executive director

Dr. M Ramachandran#

Independent director

Mr. S.C Kalio@

Independent director

#Appointed w.e.f January 09, 2018; @resigned w.e.f October 28, 2017

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meets the
requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
During the year ended, meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
meeting was held on April 26, 2017 which was attended by Ms. Meena Raghunathan,

and Mr. S.C Kalia.
6. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

a) Composition of the Committee.

The current composition of the Executive Committee is as follows:

Name

Category

Mr. S.N. Barde

Executive director

Mr. Ashis Basu

Executive director

b) Meetings of the Executive Commitfee:

During the year ended, meeting of Executive Committee meeting was held on April
17,2017, June 06, 2017, September 26, 2017, and January 15, 2018.

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a) Details of location and time of holding the last three AGMs.

Year Location

Date & Time

Special Resolutions passed

2014-2015

Maharashtra -400 051

No.701/704, 7th Floor, Naman
Centre, A Wing, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra, Mumbai,

10.00 a.m

September 17, 2015 at

o Appointment Mr. GBS Raju as
Director liable to relire by
rotation.

o Appointment Mes. Meena
Raghunathan as Director liable
to retire by rotation.

o Appointment Mr. V.

e —
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SanthanaRaman as
independent director.
Appointment Mr. GBS Raju
as Managing Director.
Approval of remuneration
of cost auditor

September 20, 2016
at 10.00 a.m

20152016 | = e o

Appointment of Mr. S.C Kadlia
as independent director.
Appointment of Mr. S.K Goel
as independent director.
Approval of remuneration of
cost auditor.

September 27, 2017
at 11.00 a.m

20162017 | = e Sl

Approval of remuneration of
cost auditor.

Approval of remuneration of
Mr. GBS Raju, Managing
Director

b) All special resolutions placed before the shareholders at the above meetings were

approved.

c) During the financial year 2017-18 one Extra-Ordinary General Meetings was held on
April 24, 2017 to approve the revision in remuneration to Mr. S.N Barde, Whole-time

Director.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report and
General Meetings. Information and latest updates and announcement regarding the
Company and about the group can be accessed at Group's web site:

WWW.GMrgroup.co.in.

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
(i) Annual General Meeting

Date : Thursday, August 30, 2018
Time :11:00 AM
Venue

: No.701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A Wing, Bandra  Kurla

Complex, Bandra, Mumbai, Maharashira - 400 051

(i) Financial calendar
Year Ending
(i) Site location

: March 31, 2018

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

: Warora taluk, Chandrapur District, Maharashtra

Your Directors are thankful to the various Central and State Government Departments
and Agencies for their continued help and cooperation. The Directors are grateful fo the
various stakeholders — customers, members, banks, dealers, vendors and other business
partners for the excellent support received from them during the year. Your Directors wish
to place on record their sincere appreciation to all employees for their commitment and
continued contribution to the Company.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For GMR Warora Energy Limited

A =

For GMR Warora Energy Limited

(oS
Srinivas Bommidala Ashis Basu
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN:00061464 DIN:01872233

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 18, 2018
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Annexure-1

FORM NO. MGT ¢

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2018
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

4 [y
157,
&2

e

II.'J _.”'.lll

CIN

U40100MH2005PLC155140

Registration Date

4-Aug-05

Name of the Company

GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED

Category/Sub-category of the
Company

Public Company limited by shares

\ Address of the Registered office No.701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre, A Wing, Bandra
& contact details Kurla Complex, Bandra,
Mumbai - 400 051 Tel:022-
42028000
Vi Whether listed company Debt Listed
Vii Name, Address & contact details of the | Karvy Computershare Private Limited, Karvy
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial
District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad-500032 Tel: +91
040 67161503, Email:varghese@karvy.com
] PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total tumover of the company shall be
stated
SLNo | Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products/services Product /service of the company
1 Generation of Electricity 40102 100%
Il PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
S Name & Address of CIN/GLN HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY/ | % OF APPLI
No | the Company ASSOCIATE SHARES CABL
HELD E
SECTI
ON
1 GMR Energy Limited, | UB5110MH1996PLC274875 Holding 100% 2(46)
No.701/704, 7th Floor,
Naman Centre, A
Wing, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandrq,
Mumbai - 400 051
SHAREHOLDING PATITERN (Equity Share Capital Break up as % to total Equity)
Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Shareholders | year change
during
the year
Demat Ph Total % of Demat Phy Total % of
ysi Total sic Total
cal Shares al Share
s
A. Promoters

e e T T e e e e T e e —— e e e r——
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(1) Indian - - = - . -
a)
Individual/HUF ~ = = . - . . : R
b) Central
Govt.or

State Govt. - = = = = = z 2 =

c) Bodies
Corporates 870,000,000 | - 870,000,000 100% | 870,000,000 | - 870,000,000 100% | NIL

d) Bank/Fl - = . = = _ z = =
e) Any other - - E - - =

SUB TOTAL:(A)
(1) 870,000,000 | - 870,000,000 | 100% | 870,000,000 | - 870,000,000 | 100% | NIL

(2) Foreign

a) NRI-
Individuals ~ - = = 4 = =
b) Other
Individuals - = 2 = =

c) Bodies - - : = =
Corp.

d) Banks/Fl - - - E = - = . =

e) Any other - - = 3 =

SUB TOTAL (A)
2 . s = y . ; ] . 1

Total
Shareholding
of Promoter
(A)=
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 870,000,000 | - 870,000,000 100% 870,000,000 - 870,000,000 100% | NIL

B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDIN
G

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual - = = = = A = .
Funds

b) Banks/Fl . = = = s = . . =

C) Central - . - . = S : = =
govt

d) State Govt. | - - - - = - - - :

e) Venture
Capital Fund - = - - - . -

f) Insurance
Companies = - - - : -

_g) FIIS X - - 3 . . . . .

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds - 3 - : R =

i) Others
{specify) - - a = = =

SUB TOTAL
(B)(1).

(2) Non
Institutions

a) Bodies
corporates - - " - L o

i) Indian - 3 - = X _

#
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iij Overseds

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto
Rs.1 lakhs

i) Individuals
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capitatin
excess of Rs. 1
lakhs

c) Others
(specify)

SUB TOTAL
(B)(2):

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=
(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for

GDRs & ADRs - - - - = - -
Grand Total NIL
(A+B+C) 870,000,000 | - 870,000,000 100% 870,000,000 870,000,000 100%
(i) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
| Shareholders Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change in
No. | Name beginning of the year end of the year share-holding
during the year
No. of shares | % of total | % of NO of shares | % oftotal | % of shares
shares shares shares pledged
of the pledged of the
company company | encumbere
encumbe d to total
red to shares
total
shares
GMR Energy
1 Limited 870,000,000 100% 100% 870,000,000 100% 69% | -
Total 870,000,000 100% 100% 870,000,000 100% 69% | -

(i) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Sl.
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of

the Year

Cumuldative Shareholding during the

year

No. of Shares

% of total

shares of the

No of shares

% of total shares of
the company

increase/decrease (e.g.
adllotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity

company
At the beginning of the year 870,000,000 100% 870,000,000 100%
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for - NIL NIL NIL NIL

S ———
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etc)

At the end of the year

870,000,000

100%

870,000,000

100%

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

(iv)
Sl. Shareholding at the end Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No of the year
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of % of total | No of shares % of total shares of the
shares shares of company
the
company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase/decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease (e.9.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity
etc)
At the end of the year (or on the date of
separation, if separated during the year)
(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP
SI. No Shareholding at the end of | Cumulative Shareholding during the
the year year
For Each of the Directors & KMP No. of shares % of total No of shares % of total shares of
shares of the company
the
company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase/decrease in
shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity
etc)
At the end of the year i
\ INDEBTEDNESS
Rs. in million

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtness at the beginning of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount 33,867.40 234.00 - 34,101.85

i) Interest due but not paid 1,123.55 0 - 1,123.55

iii) Interest accrued but not due 2,68 - 2.68

Total (i+ii+iii) 34,993.63 234.45 - 35,228.08

_— e e R e
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Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
Additions/Reductions
i) Principal Amount (2,229.34) (32.33) - (2.261.67)
ii) Interest due but not paid (1,123.55) s (1.123.55)
iii) Interest accrued but not due 20.08 - 20.03
Reduction ;
Net Change (3,332.86) (32.33) - (3,.365.19)
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 31638 267.00 - 31.904.84
i) Interest due but not paid 0 -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 23.00 - 22.71
Total (i+ii+ili) 31,661 267.00 0 31,927.55
A.VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
o Particulars of Remuneration In Rs.
1 GBS Raju (MD) Ashis Basu | Mr. S.N Barde Mr. Dhananjay
(WTD) (WTD}) Deshpande
(WTD)
(a) Salary as per provisions 24,845,655 19,189,913 | 29,400,000 7,658,512
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income Tax. 1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 666,000 312,038 | - 49,743
of the Income tax Act, 1961
{c ) Profits in lieu of salary under | - - - -
section 17(3) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961
2 | Stock option - - -
3 | Sweat Equity 2 a A 5
4 | Commission - - - .
as % of profit - - - -
others (Please specify) - - - -
5 | Others - - E -
Total (A) 25,511,655 19,501,951 29,400,000 7,708,255
Ceiling as per the Act Remuneration paid is within the ceiling prescribed under Companies Act
2013 read with Ministry of Corporate Affairs Nofification dated September 12,
2016.

B. Remuneration to other directors:

| 1| Independent Directors S. C Katia* SK Goel | M. Ramachandran | Total Amount
(a) Fee for attending board 70,000 145,000 50,000 265,000
committee meetings
(b) Commission E 5 i 5
(c ) Others, please specify - . - “
Total (1) 70,000 145,000 50,000 265,000

2 | Other Non- Executive Directors

(a) Fee for attending board/
committee meetings

{b) Commission

(c] Others, please specify.

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act.

Remuneration paid is within the ceiling prescribed under
Companies Act 2013 read with Ministry of Corporate Affairs

e ——————
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| Nofification dated September 12, 2016.

*Resigned w.e.f Ocfober 28, 2017

_Ci REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Sl.
No. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
1 Gross Salary CEO Company CFO
Secretary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - 1,299,650 2,576,582 3,576,232
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the - - -
Income Tax Act, 1961
(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section - -
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Stock Option - =
Sweat Equity - - -
Commission - -
as % of profit - -
others, specify - - -
5 | Others, please specify - - - -
Total - 1,299,650 2,576,582 3,576,232
PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES’
Type Section of | Brief Detaills of Authority Appeal made if
the Descri | Penalty/Punishment/Compo | (RD/NCLT/Court | any (give details)
Compani | ption unding fees imposed )
es Act
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penaity

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

L

Srinivo;Bommidolo
Managing Director
DIN:00061464

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 18, 2018

— N

Ij.f
Ashis Bas
Whole-time Director

DIN:01872233
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Annexure-ll

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GMR Warora Energy Limited

701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre A-Wing,
BandraKurla Complex, Bandra,
Mumbai -400051, Maharashtra

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by GMR Warora Energy
Limited (CIN: U40100MH2005PLC155140) (hereinafter called the ‘Company’). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the registers, records, books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315t March, 2018 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31t March,
2018according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contfracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder;(Not applicable)

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;(Not applicable)

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable)

b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

c} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999: (Not applicable)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations,2008;

f) The Securitiecs and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable) and

- ]
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h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998(Not applicable).

6. The other major laws, as informed and certified by the Management of the
Company, which are specifically applicable to the Company based on their sector/
industry are:

i. Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules made thereunder

ii. Electricity Supply Act 1948 and the rules made thereunder

ii. The Boilers Act, 1923 and the rules and regulations made thereunder.

v. Electricity Regulatory Commission Act, 1948.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges read
with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review and as per representations and clarifications provided by
the management, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc as mentioned hereinabove.

WE FURTHER REPORT THAT:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaning full participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the
Board, as the case may be.

We further report that based on review of compliance system prevailing in the Company
and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, we
are of the opinion that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has following specific
events / actions that having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of
the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc..

- The Company has approved the revision of remuneration of Mr. S. N. Barde, Whole
Time Director at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on Monday, April 24, 2017.

For S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Shesdev Behera

Company Secretary in practice
CP. No. 5980

M. No. F-8428

Date: 13.06.2018
Place: New Delhi
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Note: Annexure-'A’ forming an integral part of this Report.

Annexure-‘A’
To,
The Members,
GMR Warora Energy Limited
701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre A-Wing,
BandraKurla Complex, Bandra,
Mumbai -400051, Maharashtra

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express as opinion on such secretarial records
based on our audit,

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as we considered appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance on the correctness and completeness of the secretarial
records. Our verification was conducted on a test basis to ensure that all entries have
been made as per statutory requirements; we believe that the processes and
practices we followed for this purpose provided a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records
and books of accounts of the Company.

4., Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation with respect
to compliance of laws, rules and regulations and of significant events during the
year.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and
regulations, and standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to the verification of secretarial records on test-check basis to the extent
applicable to the Company.

6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Shesdev Behera

Company Secretary in practice
CP. No. 5980

M. No. F-8428

Date: 13.06.2018
Place: New Delhi



Annexure-Ill

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

GMR Warora Energy Limited (formerly EMCO Energy Limited) (the Company) forming
part of GMR Group has adopted the CSR Policy of GMR Group. GMR Group(the Group)
recognizes that its business activities have wide impact on the societies in which it
operates and therefore an effective practice is required giving due consideration to the
interests of its stakeholders including shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers,
business partners, local communities and other organizations.

The Company is driven by Group's vision to make a difference, specifically fo society by
contributing to the economic development of the country and improving the quality of
life of the local communities. Towards this vision, the Group including the Company,
through GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (GMRVF), partners with the communities around
the businesses to drive various initiatives in the areas of education, health, hygiene,
sanitation, empowerment, livelihood and community development.

Projects / Activities / Programmes proposed to be undertaken under CSR Policy

As recommended by the CSR Committee of the Board and as per the approval of the

Board of directors at their meeting held on July 30, 2015, the Company contributes or

carries out its CSR activities or contribute funds to GMRVF for utilization broadly towards

the following projects / activities / programmes (preference shall be given to the areas in
and around the project, Vemagiri):

i) Education:

e Support for promotion of education of all kinds (school education, technical, higher,
vocational and adult education), to all ages and in various forms, with a focus on
vulnerable and under-privileged;

e FEducation for girl child and the underprivieged by providing appropriate
infrastructure and groom them as future citizens and contributing members of

society;

i) Health, Hygiene and Sanitation:

e Ambulance services, mobile medical units, health awareness programmes and
camps, medical check-ups, HIV/AIDS awareness initiatives, health care facilities and
services, sanitation facilifies;

e Fradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promotion of preventive health care
and sanitation, and making available safe drinking water;

e Reducing child mortality and improving maternal health;

i) Empowerment & Livelihoods:

e Employment enhancing vocational skills training, marketing support and other
initiatives for youth, women, elderly, rural population and the differently abled, and
livelihood enhancement projects;

e promoting gender equality, empowering women, working for senior citizens and
measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward

groups;
e Assist in skill development by providing direction and technical expertise for
empowerment;

iv) Community Development:
e Encouraging youth and children to form clubs and participate in community
development activities such as like cleanliness drives, plantation drives etc;

v) Environmental sustainability:
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e ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and
maintaining quality of soll, air and water;

vi) Heritage and Culture:

o protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and
sites of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion
and development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

vi) measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their
dependents;

viil) training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and
Olympic sports;

ix) confribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by
the Ceniral Government or the State Governments for socio-economic
development and relief, and funds for the welfare of the Scheduled Castes,
Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

x) contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic
institutions which are approved by the Central Government;

xi} rural development projects;

xii) such other activities included in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be
identified by CSR Committee from time to time, which are not expressly prohibited.

The activities undertaken in pursuance of the normal course of business, activities
undertaken outside India and acfivities that benefit exclusively the employees of the
company or their family members shall not be treated as CSR activities of the Company.

Further, the surplus arising out of the CSR activity shall not form part of business profits of
the Company.

For GMR Warora Energy Limited For GMR Warora Energy Limited
Ashis Basu Dr. M Ramachandran
Whole-time Ditector Chairman- CSR Commiittee
DIN:01872233 DIN:00075644

Date: July 18,2018
Place: New Delhi

e e e —————— T
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Annexure-lV
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programs.

GMR Warora Energy Limited (the Company) forming part of GMR Group has adopted
the CSR Policy of GMR Group. GMR Group (the Group) recognizes that its business
activities have wide impact on the societies in which it operates and therefore an
effective practice is required giving due consideration to the interests of its stakeholders
including shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, business partners, local
communities and other organizations.

The Company is driven by Group's vision to make a difference, specifically to society by
contributing to the economic development of the country and improving the quality of
life of the local communities. Towards this vision, the Group including the Company,
through GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (GMRVF), partners with the communities around
the businesses to drive various initiatives in the areas of education, health, hygiene,
sanitation, empowerment, livelihood and community development.

Projects / Activities / Programmes proposed to be undertaken under CSR Policy

As recommended by the CSR Committee of the Board and as per the approval of the
Board of directors at their meeting held on April 26, 2017, the Company contributes or
carries out its CSR activities or contribute funds to GMRVF for utilization broadly towards
the following projects / activities / programmes (preference shall be given fo the areas
in and around the project, Warora, Chandrapur, Maharashira):

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS
Anganwadi Programs
e Reached to 350 Anganwadi children by organizing classes, distributed TLM, repairing of

centers and teachers Trainings.

E-Learning and Kids Smart Centre
e 539 children from 6 ZP schools enrolled and learning computer skills from E- Learning and

Education Centers.
e 90 Students from 3-8 year age are learning education using technological enabled Kid

Smart Center.

After School Learning Center
e 228 slow learners enrolled in 5 ASLCs, learning through joyful leaming methods &

improving education level.

Providing support to govt. Schools
o Providing TLM, Sports kits, Wall Magazine and infrastructure support to 8 ZP schools.
Improving Quality of Education of 800 students.

HEALTH, HYGIENE & SANITATION PROGRAM
Curative Health Services

+ 8 Clinics are in operation that treated over 25,000 during the year.
+  Organized 27 Health camps during the year that benefitted more than 1400 people.

Swach Bharat Abhiyan
« 5 vilages covered under Gram Swachhata Abhiyan and regular cleaning of village

performed by villagers.
+ 100 Dust Bins Installed dust bins in 6 villages to promote Swachhata in villages.

Potable Drinking Water- Ro Atm'’s
#
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PRI

« Installed 4 RO Water ATM in 4 villages.
+ Alltogether 10 ATM providing treated water more than 2400 HHs.

Sanitation Program- Sopa Toilets
»  Constructed 100 Individual Sanitary Laboratory (ISL) in 3 villages.
«  Moving to achieve target of ODF in Five villages.

Preventive Health Care Program
» 4 Nutrition Centers in 6 villages providing nutrition support to more than 55 pregnant

and lactating mothers.
« Series of heath awareness program for youths, Adolescent girls, Women organize on

regular basis. .
+  Operate Fogging Machine in 7 villages. Resulting less cases of vector borne diseases.

EMPOWERMENT AND LIVELIHOODS PROGRAMS

Vocational training
+ 106 youths completed training in two courses at Warora. Out of passed students 71

youths are seftled.

+ 110 women completed training on basic tailoring skills. 37 women have started
stitching work.

« 57 youths sponsored for vocational training at HYD & DEL during the year and out of

this 42 youths settled in jobs.

Organic Farming
+ 5 Grain-Cash-Seed Banks formed in five villages for solving seed problems.
«  GCS banks contributed nearly 3.5 lakhs for purchase of Kharif seed and distributed

seed to more than 600 farmers.

«  More than 1500 farmers trained on Organic cultivation and more than 650 farmers laid
demonstration of organic Cotton & Soybean crops in Kharif and Wheat & Chick pea
in Rabi

Veterinary Services
+ Covering 30 vilages and covered more than 17000 animals and conducted 420

Artificial Insemination (Al).
+  Organized 45 Animal Health Camps covered 2012 farmers and 13656 Animals.
Treatment for minor ailments in animals and vaccination, Pregnancy detection etc. in

the camps.

Women Empowerment

»  Organize 96 Self Help Groups and reaching to more than 1200 women.

+  Provided support to 587 women to take up various group and individual income
generation activities. Income of 450 families increased by Rs. 6000 per annum.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Water Harvesting
« 2 Water Harvesting tank renovated which will provide water to nearly 200 acres of

land additional water storage to tune of 20 lakhs Hfrs.

Drain Construction
»  Constructed more than 515 M drains in five villages.

Blood Donation Camp
« 248 people donated blood in 3 Blood donation camps organized with the support

from Rotary club and Charitable Blood Bank.

Creating Basic Amenities
« 50 cement benches installed in 8 villages.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee.

The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as under:

1. Mr. S.C Kalia- Independent Director (resigned w.e.f October 28, 2017)
B e e e ———— T i e
Board's Report_ GMR Warora Energy Limited- 2017-18



2. Mr. S.N Barde- Executive Director
3. Ms Meena Raghunathan- Non-Executive Director

4. Dr. M Ramachandran (appointed wef January 9, 2018)

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years.

The Company has incurred losses (in average) during the last three financial years.

4, Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above).

Since the Company has incurred losses during the last three financial years, expenditure is not
applicable/not mandatory.

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2017-18:

(a) Total amount spent for the financial year(voluntarily): Rs.144.97 lakh
(b} Amount unspent if any: NIL
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

Amount in lakhs

S. CSR Project or Sectorin Projects or Amount Amount Cumulative | Amount
No | Activity identified which the programs (1) | outlay spent on expenditure | spent :Direct
project is Local area (budget) | the project | upto the or through
covered or other (2) project or programs | reporting implementing
Specify the or sub-heads period agency
state and programs | (1) Direct
district wise expenditure
where on projects
projects or or programs
progroms (2)
was Overheads
undertaken
1 o Improving Education Local Areq, 15.42 15.42 Implementing
education Chandrapur, Agency
through Para Maharashtra
teacher, After
School Learning
Center,  Tuition
center,
Computer
education
o Providing basic
infrastructure  to
Govt. schools
2 o Curative health | Health Local Areq, 24.52 24.52 Implementing
care through | Hygiene and | Chandrapur, Agency
health clinics, | Sanitation Maharashtra
health camps
and mobile
Medicare unit
(MMU)
o Preventive health
care through
awareness
program
3 o Empowerment Empowerment | Local Areq, 24.84 24.84 Implementing
through & Livelihood Chandrapur, Agency
capacity Maharashtra
building of
women &

farmers
o Livelihood
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2O

Generation by
vocational
trainings &
Income Gen.
Program
Capex - Local Area, 12.15 12.15 Direct

Chandrapur,

Maharashtra
o Providing Community Local Areaq, 68.04 68.04 Implementing
potable water in | Development | Chandrapur, Agency
villages Maharashtra
o Improving drains
and  sanitation
facilities in  the
villages

Total 144.97 144.97

é. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the
last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not
spending the amount in its Board's report:

The Company has voluntary spent Rs.144.97 lakh in CSR activities.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring
of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company:

The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives
and Policy of the Company.

For GMR Warora Energy Limited

o)

Dr. M Ramachandran
Chairman- CSR Committee
DIN:00075644

For GMR Warora Energy Limited

Ashis Basu
Whole-time Director
DIN:01872233

Date: July 18, 2018

Place: New Delhi

R )

Board's Report_ GMR Warora Energy Limited- 2017-18

=



Annexure-V

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

1.1. Appointment criteria and qualifications

(a) Subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, other applicable
laws, if any and GMR Group HR Policy, the Committee shall identify and ascertain the
integrity, quadlification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as
Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her
appointment.

(b) The Committee has discretion to decide the adequacy of qualification, expertise and
experience for the concerned position.

(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as
Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager who has atfained the age of
seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be
extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing
a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such
motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

1.2. Term / Tenure

1.2.1. Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager (Managerial Personnel)

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Personnel for a
term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than
one year before the expiry of term.

1.2.2. Independent Director

(a) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on
the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re appointment on passing of a special
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

(b) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but
such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of
ceasing to become an Independent Director.

Provided that an iIndependent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be
appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or
indirectly.

(c) At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number
of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is resfricted to seven listed
companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent
Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company.

(d) The maximum number of public companies in which a person can be appointed as a
director shall not exceed ten.

For reckoning the limit of public companies in which a person can be appointed as
director, directorship in private companies that are either hoiding or subsidiary company
of a public company shall be included.

1.3. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

ﬂ
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The company shall familiarize the Independent Directors with the company, their roles,
rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company
operates, business model of the company, etc., through various programmes.

1.4. Evaluation
Subject to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing

Agreement, the Committee shall carry out the evaluation of Directors periodically.

1.5. Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules
made thereunder or under any other applicable laws, rules and regulations, the
Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a
Director, KMP, subject to the provisions and compliance of the applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

1.6. Retirement

The Director, KMP and Personne! of Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The
Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Personnel of Senior
Management in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the
retirement age, in the interest and for the benefit of the Company.

2. PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, KMP AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

2.1. General

(a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to Managerial Personnel will be
determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The
remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.

(b) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managerial Personnel shall be as
per the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder
for the time being in force.

(c} Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure may be
recommended by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs
approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managerial Personnel.

(d} Where any insurance is taken by a company on behalf of its Managing Director,
Whole-time Director, Manager, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or
Company Secretary for indemnifying any of them against any liability in respect of any
negligence, default, misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may
be guilty in relation to the company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be
treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel.

2.2. Remuneration to Managerial Personnel, KMP, Senior Management and Other
Employees

2.2.1. Fixed Pay

Managerial Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved
by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the
statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the
time being in force. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including,
employer's contribution to provident fund, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees
etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever

required.

2.2.2. Minimum Remuneration
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If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadeqguate, the
Company shall pay remuneration to its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to comply with
such provisions, with the prior approval of the Central Government.

2.2.3. Provisions for excess remuneration

If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of
remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she
shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for
the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless
permitted by the Central Government.

2.2.4. The remuneration to Personnel of Senior Management shall be governed by the
GMR Group HR Policy.
2.2.5. The remuneration to other employees shall be governed by the GMR Group HR

Policy.
2.3. Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director

2.3.1. Remuneration / Commission

The remuneration / commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.

2.3.2. Sifting Fees

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof.

Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as
provided in the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such
amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

The sitting fee paid to Independent Directors and Women Directors, shall not be less than
the sitting fee payable to other directors.

2.3.3. Limit of Remuneration / Commission

Remuneration / Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by
shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company
computed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

2.3.4. Stock Options
An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For GMRM Limited For GMR Warora Energy Limited

Srinivas Bommidala Ashis Basu
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN:00061464 DIN:01872233

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 18, 2018
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Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GMR WARORA ENERGY LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR WARORA ENERGY
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board ol Directors is responsible lor the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss
(financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows. and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendment rules issued thereafter. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for cnsuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are frec from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there-under.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs
(financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit (financial performance
including other comprehensive income) , its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2018:

a. Note No. 20(c ) to the financial Statement, regarding recognition of income relating to
claims on coal cost pass through which are pending for adjudication before Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL) in case of power purchase agreement with Maharashtra
State Electricity Distribution Company Limited (MSEDCL) and Union territory of Dadra
Nagar Haveli (DNH) [together referred as Customers] in view of Supreme Court Judgment
as referred to in the note and CERC Order in case of TANGEDCO during the year.
Considering opinion received from legal counsels that the Company has good tenable case
with virtual certainty with respect to coal cost pass through and CERC judgment in
Company’s own case for TANGDECO where the computation methodology of Coal Pass
Through was decided, the management of the Company is virtually certain of receipt of
revenue on coal cost pass through and has recognized the income of Rs. 977.94 million
from the date of scheduling of power to DNH and MSEDCL under PPA.
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b. Note No. 27(a) to the Financial Statement, regarding recovery of transmission charges
from Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited (MSEDCL). The
Company pursuant to Appellate Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL) Order (“The Order”)
dated May 08, 2015 has raised invoices towards reimbursement of transmission charges
from the initial date of scheduling the power. The Company in terms of the said Order,
has accounted for the reimbursement of transmission charges of Rs. 882.75 Million
relating to the financial year 2017-18 (Rs. 923.07 million for corresponding previous
year), as reduction from transmission expenses as followed in the earlier years and Rs.
3,110.37 million cumulative till March 31, 2018, based on the reasons stated therein the
note and opinion from legal counsel stating that the Company has good tenable case with
respect to the appeal filed by MSEDCL against the said Order which is pending before
Honorable Supreme Court of India.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the aforesaid matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we
give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of
the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment
rules issued thereafter;
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in ‘Annexure B’; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended , in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

a.  the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position to the extent quantifiable in the Ind AS financial statements - Refer
Note 32 to the Ind AS financial statements;

b.  the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses ;

c.  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and

d the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes were applicable for the period from November 08, 2016
to December 30, 2016 which are not relevant to these Ind AS financial
statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

for CHATURVEDI] & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W

(7] At

Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership Number: 35671

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2018
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

In terms of the Annexure A referred to in our report to the members of the GMR WARORA
ENERGY LIMITED (“the Company”) on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2018, we report that:

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipments (PPE).

b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its PPE by which PPE
are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
program, considerable amount of PPE's were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (
which are included under Note no 2 - Property, plant and equipments) are held in the
name of the Company except for the following :

Amount in Millions
Total No. | Leasehold | Gross Block | Net Block as | Remarks, if any
of cases / Freehold | as at March | at March 31,
31,2018 2018
1 Freehold 8.90 8.90 Refer Note (a) below

1 Leasehold 8.02 7.73 Refer Note (b) below

(a) the freehold land admeasuring to 9.78 acres capitalized during the year based on
Agreement to sell.

(b) the Leasehold land for railway siding capitalized during the year admeasuring to
33.01 acres wherein lease deed with Maharashtra Industrial Development Corporation
is in the name of GMR Energy Limited (the Holding Company)

if) The inventory, except for the inventory lying with the third party, has been physically
verified by the management at regular intervals and in our opinion, the frequency of such
verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not material.
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iii)  As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other parties
listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Consequently requirements of
paragraph 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c ) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv)  As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not given any loans,
investments, guarantees, security to the parties covered under section 185 of the Act.
Further, the Company is an infrastructure Company and accordingly section 186 of the Act is
not applicable. Consequently requirement of paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits ) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, provision of
paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. There are no orders from
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any
Court or any other Tribunal.

vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company, pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government of India, for the maintenance of cost records as
prescribed under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and we are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have
not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has
generally been regular in depositing the amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s
state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
customs, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on
account of duty of excise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed statutory
dues were outstanding for a period of more than six months, as on the last day of the
financial year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the
Company, there are no dues of income tax , goods and service tax, sales tax , service
tax , duty of customs, value added tax or cess or other material statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute except the following:
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Name of | Nature of Year to Amount Forum where dispute is
the Dues which it Demanded pending
Statute pertains (Rsin
Millions)
Income | Short FY 2013-14 0.03 Appeal filed before CIT (A)
tax Act, | deduction
1961 of TDS.
Service | Service tax | FY 2009-10 0.45 Response is filed before
Tax demand Assistant Commissioner of
Service tax and the same is
pending for hearing.

viii) According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the Company, the

xi)

xii)

Company during the year under audit has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to
banks and financial institution.

The Company did not have any outstanding dues in respect of a debenture holder during the
year.

Further, the Company has not taken any loans from Government.

According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the Company, the
Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Further, in our opinion and according to the
information and explanation given to us, the company has not availed any term loans during
the year.

During the course of examination of books of account and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have not come across with any material fraud by
the Company or any fraud on Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have been informed of such case by the Management.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the adequate approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.
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xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company, during the year has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W

,_ /4)— .-"?’c - (Lﬁ_,_,..-f--
Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership Number: 35671

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2018
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR WARORA ENERGY
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”} issued
by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

for CHATURVEDI & SHAH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number : 101720W

-I“J = ] r 4

h /,/L'..L —e{_ > %
Chandan Lala 3ot
Partner :

Membership Number: 35671

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2018
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GMR Warora Energy Limited
CIN :U40100MH2005PLC155140

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

Rs in Millions

Particulars Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 32,974.54 33,111.82
Capital work in progress 2 509.32 982.28
Intangible assets 3 6.16 6.74
Financial assets
Investments 4 =
Loans 5 19.41 1,041.45
Other financial assets 6 163.11
Income tax assets (Net) 16 26.04 2411
Other non-current assets 7 161.90 229.23
Total Non-current assets 33,697.37 35,558.74
Current assets
Inventories 8 656.72 £692.59
Financial assets
Trade Receivables 9 3,943.91 3,109.64
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 62.18 92.15
Bank balances other than above 10 310.50 131.52
Loans S 4891 43.16
Other financial assets 6 1,808.49 1,853.73
Other current assets 7 606.71 579.60
Total current assets 7.437.42 6,502.39
Total Assets 41,134.79 42,061.13
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 11 8,700.00 8,700.00
Other equity 12 (5,708.40) (7,637.30)
Total Equity 2,991.60 1,062.70
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 13 30,026.49 31,717.54
Other financial liabifities 14 484 -
Provisions 15 53.42 4513
Deferred tax liability (net) 16 - -
Total Non-current liabilities 30,084.75 31,762.67
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 17 2,725.47 2,704.80
Trade payables 18 2,356.94 1,603.92
Other financial liabilities 14 2,821.08 4,751.55
Other current liabilities 19 42,06 60.96
Provisions 15 108.89 114,53
Total current liabilities 8,058.44 9,235.76
Total liabilities 38,143.19 40,998.43
Total Equity and liabilities 41,134.79 42,061.13
Significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101720W
/7

Chandanlala ¢ ___—
Partner

Membership no.: 35671

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

GMR Warora Energy Limited

- "

Srinivas Bommidala
Managing Director
IN: 00061464

\

»
Asbfsh Deshpande

Chief Financial Officer
MN : 110081

Place : New Delhi
Date : April 26, 2018

sy

Ashis Basu
Whole-time Director
DIN : 01872233

4

Sanjay Kumar Babu
Company Secretary
MN : F-8649
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Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018
Rs in Millions

Particulars Notes March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
INCOME
Revenue from operations 20 17,706.70 16,766.38
Other income 21 180,13 400.41
Total income 17,886.83 17,166.79
EXPENSES
Cost of fuel consumed 22 7,567.72 7,169.93
Purchase of Stock in Trade 23 1,110.79 540.86
Employee benefit expenses 24 533.07 437.10
Depreciation and amortization expenses 25 1,219.15 1,213.32
Finance costs 26 4,192.86 4,929.32
Other expenses 27 1,336.57 1,445.35
Total Expenses 15,960.16 15,735.88
Profit before tax 1,926.67 1,430.91
Tax Expense
Current tax 16 - -
Deferred tax 16 (0.74) 1.37
Profit for the year 1,927.41 1,429.54

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 2.23 (4.14)
Income tax effect (0.74) 1.37
Total Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1.49 (2.77)
Total Comprehensive income for the year 1,928.90 1,426.77

Earnings per Equity Share
Equity Shares of par value Rs 10/- each

Basic (Rs) 31 2,22 1.64
Diluted (Rs) 31 2.22 1.64
Significant accounting palicies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Chaturvedi & Shah GMR Warora Energy Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101720W o
- - - ——— . s")
CAL. A — A a4
Chandan Lala Srinivas Bommidala " Ashis Bas
Partner Managling Director Whole-time Director
Membership no.: 35671 : 00061464 DIN : 01872233
o
Ashish Deshpande Sanjay Kumar Babu
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
MN : 110081 MN : F-8649
Place : Mumbai Place : New Delhi

Date : April 26, 2018 Date : April 26, 2018
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Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018

Rs In Millions
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
A) Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before tax 1,926.67 1,430.91
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,219.15 1,213.32
Finance Cost 4,192.86 4,929.32
Interest income on bank deposits and ICD {39.60) (224.26)
Provision for doubtful debts - 40.49
Write off of trade advance 8.43 0.00
Forex fluctuation on recognition of financial income - 0.18
Remeasurement of Net defined obligation 2.23 (4.14)
profit on sale of asset - (0.05)
Cash Flow before changes in working capital 7,309.74 7,385.77
AdJustments for changes in working capital:
{Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 35.87 319.90
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (859.62) (2,031.37)
{Decrease) / Increase in trade and other payables 477.88 (983.51)
Cash generated from operations 6,963.87 4,690.79
Direct taxes (paid) / refund (1.93) (18.73)
Net cash used / in from operating activities 6,961.94 4,672.06
B) Cash Flows from / (used in) Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (1,129.87) (193.41)
Decrease/ (Increase) in capital work in progress including capital 534.27 (374.30)
advances
Increase /(decrease) in balances with banks (17.88) 28.33
Increase / (Decrease) in Inter corporate loans to group companies 1,016.65 263.35
Interest received on Bank deposit 82.06 232.63
Net cash used / in from investing activities 485.23 (43.40)
C) Cash Flows from / {used in) Financing Activities
Non-current liabilities
Proceeds / (repayment ) of rupee term loan (2,260.52) (1,037.17)
Proceeds from short term loan 24.67 325,93
Interest charges paid (5,241.29) {3,846.95)
Net Cash Flow from / (used in) In Financing Activities {7,477.14) (4,558.19)
D) Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C] (29.97) 70.47
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of the year 92.15 21.68
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the vear 62,18 92.15
Breakup of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash on hand 1.07 0.38
Balance with Banks 61.11 91.77
Neposits with maturity less than three months 5 =
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of year 62.18 92.15




GMR Warora Energy Limited
CIN :U40100MH2005PLC155140
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018
Notes:
1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Statement of
Cash Flows.

N

Effective from April 01, 2017, the Company adopted the amendments to Ind AS 7, which requires the entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities ,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash charges, suggesting inclusion of reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities , to meet the disclosure
requirement. Since the Company has adopted amendments to ind AS 7 for the first time during the year, previous year
reconciliation are not given. The reconciliation is as given below:

Rs in Millions
Particulars March 31,2018
Long Term Barrowings
Opening Balance (including current maturity of long term borrowings) 34,101.85
Proceeds / {repayment ) of long term borrowings (net) {2,260.52)
Non-cash fair value charges 63.51
Closing balance (including current maturity of long term borrowings) 31,904.84
Short Term Borrowings
Opening Balance 2,704.80
Proceeds / (repayment ) of short term borrowings (net) 24.67
Non-cash fair value charges =
Closing balance 2,729.47

As per our report of even date attached

For Chaturvedi & Shah For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants GMR Warora Energy Limited

Firm Registration No.: 101720W

| <~ _.nl
cfﬁ:;ff/{z/_ v AshisBL

Srinivas Bommidala asu
Partner Managing Director Wholetime Director
Membership no.: 3567 . DIN : 01872233

(

Sanfay Kumar Babu
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
MN : 110081 MN : F-8649

Place : Mumbai Place : New Delhi
Date : April 26, 2018 Date : 2Gth April 2018
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Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

Rs in Millions

Particulars Equity Share Other Equity Total Equity
capital Equity Reserves & Surplus Other
component of Comprehensiv
Financial e Income
Instrument Retained Debenture |Other
Earnings Redemption
Reserve

Balance as at March 31, 2016 8,700.00 1,288.26 (10,352.10) (0.23}) (364.07)
Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2017 :
Profit for the year 1,429.54 1,429.54
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve -187.50 187.50 -
Other Comprehensive income

Remeasurement gains /(loss) on defined benefit (2.77) (2.77)

plans net of tax effect
Balance as at March 31, 2017 8,700.00 1,288.26 (9,110.06) 187.50 (3.00) 1,062.70
Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018
Profit for the year 1,927.41 1,927.41
Other Comprehensive income

Remeasurement gains /(loss) on defined benefit 1.49

plans net of tax effect
Balance as at March 31, 2018 8,700.00 1,288.26 (7,182.65) 187.50 (1.51) 2,991.60

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Chaturvedi & Shah

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101720W

CAL. “

Chandan Lala
Partner
Membership no.: 35671

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
GMR Warora Energy Limited

-

Srinivas Bommidala
Managing Director
IN: 00061464

Mhish@

Chief Financial Officer
MN : 110081

Place : New Delhi
Date :April 26, 2018

Ashis Basu
Whole-time Director
DIN : 01872233

4

Sanjay Kumar Babu
Company Secretary
MN : F-8648
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Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

COMPANY OVERVIEW:

GMR Warora Energy Limited {'the Company') (Formerly known as EMCO Energy Limited) is a public company incorporated under
the provisions of the Companies Act 1956, having its registered office at 701/704 , 7th floor, Naman Centre, A wing, Bandra Kurla
Complex , Mumbai — 400 051 and engaged in the business of generation and sale of power.The Company has an installed and fully
commissioned capacity of 600 MW of thermal power and has entered in to power purchase agreement (PPA) with three state
utility boards for supply of power from the thermal power plant situated at Warora taluka, Chandrapur district in Maharashtra
state.

information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note no. 36.

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 are authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the directors on April 26, 2018.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments), the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 (‘Act') {to the extent notified). The Ind AS are
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
relevant amendment rules issued thereafter. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use. These financial statements are called "Ind AS Financial Statements".

The standalone Ind AS financial statements are presented in 'Indian Rupees' {INR) which is also the Company's functional currency
and all values are disclosed to the nearest Millions with two decimals (INR 000,000.00), except when otherwise indicated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
i) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Ii) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes
or duties collected on behalf of the government.

i) Revenue from sale of energy is recognized as per the terms of the Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) and Letter of
Intent ('LOI') (collectively hereinafter referred to as ‘the PPAs’) on accrual basis and includes unbilled revenue
accrued up to the end of the accounting year. Revenue from energy units sold on merchant basis is recognized in
accordance with billings made to consumers based on the units of energy delivered and the rate agreed with the
customers. The revenue from tariff receivable under Change in Law is accounted in accordance with rates approved
by Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC).

ii} Revenue/charges from Unscheduled Interchange for the deviation in generation with respect to scheduled units are
recognized/ charged at rates notified by CERC from time to time as revenue from sale of energy and adjusted to
revenue from sale of energy.

) Revenue from sale of power Is net of prompl payment iebate eligible to the customers.

iv) Claims for delayed payment charges and any other claims, which the Company is entitled to under the PPAs, are
recognied on reasonable certainty to expect ultimate collection and on acceptance by the customers.

v) Revenue earned in excess of billings has been included under “other financial assets - Current” as unbilled revenue
and billings in excess of revenue have been disclosed under “other liabilities” as unearned revenue.
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vi) Interest Income :
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss

vii) Dividends :
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is astablished, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

iii) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

jii. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
i. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
ji. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

iv) Property, Plant & Equipments:
Freehold land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost including goverment grants and decommissioning costs less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items such as purchase price, freight, duties, levies. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a seperate assets are derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

The Company Identlfles and determines cost of each component/ part of the assct separately, if the component/ part has
a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially different from that of the
remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life
of the principal asset.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the company intends to use these during more
than a period of 12 months and having a value of more than 5 lakhs.

The Company on transition to Ind AS, has clected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 ('the transition date’) measured as per the previous GAAP in terms of paragraphs
D7AA & D13AA of Ind AS 101 - 'First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards' and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment after making adjustments for finance lease (paragraph D9 of ind AS
101) and transaction cost of long term borrowings as per Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group (ITFG) Clarification Bulletin 5
(Revised).
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Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Straight Line Method over the useful lives of the assets which is equal to or
less than those specified under Schedule li to the Companies Act, 2013 as follows :

Asset Type Estimated useful
Life {In Years)

Factory Building 30
Other Buildings 3
Roads 5
Power Plant and related assets 40
Railway Siding 15

Plant & Machinery - General 15
Office equipment 5
Furniture & Fixture 10
Electrical Installations 10
Computer Equipment 3
Motor cycle 8
Motor Car 8

Further, the management has estimated the useful lives of asset individually costing Rs 5,000 or less to be less than one
year, whichever is lower than those indicated in Schedule Il. The management believes that these estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Leasehold Land is depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Depreciation to adjustments to the historical cost of the assets on account of foreign exchange fluctuations is provided
prospectively over the residual useful life of the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

v) Capital Work in Progress :

vi

=

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development as at the
balance sheet date.

All Project related expenditure viz, civil works, machinery under erection, construction and erection materials, expenditure
directly attributable to the construction of project, borrowing cost incurred prior to the date of commercial operation /
intended use and trial run expenditure {net of revenue) are shown under Capital Work-in-Progress. These expenses are
net of recoveries and income from surplus funds arising out of project specific borrowings after taxes.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit
or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period with the affect of any
change in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future aconomic henefits emhndied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the company’s intangible assets is, as follows:

Intangible  Assets Useful Life Amortisation Method Internally generated or
Acquired used acquired
Software Licenses Definite (6 years) Straight-line basis over Acquired

the license period

vii) Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. All ather borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur.

viii) Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset, the cost of the asset shown at gross value and grant
there on is treated as capital grant which is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss over the period and
proportion in which depreciation is charged. Revenue grants are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the same
period as the related cost which they are intended to compensate are accounted for.

ix) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

Company as a lessee :
A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a
finance lease.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing
costs.

Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term unless either:

a annther systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit even if the payments to the
lessors are not on that basis; or

b. the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation,
then this condition is not met.
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Company as a lessor :

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease, unless either:

a. another systematic basis is mare representative of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the leased asset
is diminished, even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

b. the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary according to factors other than inflation,
then this condition is not met.

initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Contingent rents are recoghised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the
company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the company’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Lands obtained on leases, where there is reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term shall generally be classified as finance leases. The minimum lease payments include upfront premium paid plus
any annual recurring lease rental which is amortized over the lease term.

x) Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows:
Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and
other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which
they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and
includes all app}icable costs in bringing inventories to their present locations and condition.

xi) Impairment of non-financial assets
As at the end of each accounting year, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment property,
intangible assets and investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are tested for
impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested
for impairment each year.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount
is determined:
i. in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and
ii. in the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of
an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax} is determined based
on the weighted average cost of capital of the company suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of
the asset).

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
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Xii)

xiii)

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of twenty to twenty five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the twenty fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in
which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the
impairment is recognised in OCl up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus. After impairment, depreciation is
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (if available) are tested for impairment annually as at December 31st at the
CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {lega! or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a pravision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with
the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with
that contract.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the standalone financial statements.

Provisions and contingent liability are reviewed at each balance sheet.

Decommissioning liability

Decommissioning Liability are recognised for those lease arrangements where the Company has an obligation at the end of
the lease period to restore the leased premises in a condition similar to inception of lease. Decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as
part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost
of the asset.
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xiv) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

XV

—

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.,are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, pension fund, superannuation fund etc. are defined contribution
scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to provident fund, pension fund and superannuation fund as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reporting date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If
the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then
excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example. a reduction in future payment
or a cash refund.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short—term employee
benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long—term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long—term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year—end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the standalone
balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the
reporting date.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method using
actuarial valuation to be carried out at each balance sheet date

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of
actuarial valuation under projected unit credit (PUC) method.

The Gratuity of the Company is funded plan and the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under
the defined benefit plans to recognise the obligation on a net basis.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

a. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

b. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

a. Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

b. Net interest expense or income

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the
related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities are initially measured at transaction cost and where
such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognitionof financial asset or financial
liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In case of interest free or
concession loans/debentures/preference shares given to subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the excess of the
actual amount of the loan over initial measure at fair value is accounted as an equity investment.

Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost less
impairment.
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Effective Interest Method :

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(a) Financial Assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell
these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair
value through the statement of profit and loss.

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the shorter maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset.

Expected credit losses rate the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the
credit risk on a financial instruments has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month
expected credit losses are portion of the life time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that
will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that will
results if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and this, are not cash shortfalls that are
predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the
previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Company again
measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument
instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial Instrurnent ds at the dale uf initial reeognition and considers reasonable recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a
provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking
information.
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(b

—

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to another party and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount measured at the date
of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. Interest bearing
bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement
of profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

¢ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

o the financial liability whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s
documented risk management;

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.

Fair values are determined in the manner described in note ‘xix)’.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

Loans and borrowings : This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This
category generally applies to borrowings.







